
 

 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2014–14 

REGULAR MEETING JULY 21, 2014 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk 
(*).  Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council 
Member so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the 
General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 1 of 58



 

Agenda No. 2014–14 JULY 21, 2014 Page 2 of 3 

 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the following Liquor License Application 
for Transfer of Ownership and Name Change.  Public Testimony will be 
taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

  Type: Beverage Dispensary, License #4547 

  To: Lavelle’s Bistro / Franklin Eagle and Kathleen Lavelle 
   No Premises 

  From: Chili’s Grill & Bar / Duke Investments Inc. 
   No Premises (formerly 506 Merhar Ave) 
 

 b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the following Liquor License Application 
for Transfer of Location and Name Change.  Public Testimony will be 
taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

  Type: Beverage Dispensary, License #2847 

  To: Bojangles / Scruff N Pork’s Inc. 
   1351 Cushman Street, Fairbanks 

  From: No DBA / Scruff N Pork’s Inc. 
   No Premises  
 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Ordinance No. 5952 – An Ordinance Amending the 2014 Operating 
Budget to Fund the Firefighters Local No. 1324 vs City Healthcare 
Arbitration Award.  Introduced by Mayor Eberhart.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 2 of 58



 

Agenda No. 2014–14 JULY 21, 2014 Page 3 of 3 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
  a) Request from City Attorney Re: Reappointment to the AML/JIA Board 
 
 *b) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of June 4, 2014 
 
 *c) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of February 11, 2014 
 
 *d) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2014 
 
 *e) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2014 
 
 *f) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of June 10, 2014 
 
 *g) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2014 
 
 *h) Reappointment to the Clay Street Cemetery Commission 
 
 *i) Appointment and Reappointment to the Board of Plumber Examiners 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Labor Negotiations:  PSEA 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 3 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 4 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 5 of 58



Ordinance No. 5952 
Page 1 

Introduced By:  Mayor Eberhart 
Introduced: July 21, 2014 

 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5952 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2014 OPERATING BUDGET 

TO FUND THE FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL NO. 1324 VS CITY 
HEALTHCARE ARBITRATION AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, the current collective bargaining agreement (CBA) between the City 

and the Fairbanks Firefighters IAFF Local 1324 specified that the contract would be 
reopened in 2013 for negotiations on healthcare benefits for 2014 and 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties were unable to negotiate new healthcare terms, so the 

matter was submitted to arbitration; and 
 
WHEREAS, an arbitration hearing was held in March of 2014, and the arbitrator’s 

decision was issued on July 11, 2014 (copy attached); and 
 
WHEREAS, the arbitrator’s decision awarded an increase to the City’s share of 

the healthcare premium whereby the City would pay 80% of the cost of the premium 
effective January 1, 2014; and  

 
WHEREAS, this ordinance amends the 2014 operating budget to fund the 

increases awarded by the arbitrator; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows [amendments shown in bold font]:  
 

SECTION 1. There is hereby appropriated to the 2014 General Fund budget the 
following sources of revenue and expenditures in the amounts indicated to the 
departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of the City of Fairbanks, 
Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014 
(see page 2): 

 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 6 of 58



Ordinance No. 5952 
Page 2 

REVENUE
APPROVED 

BUDGET
INCREASE 

(DECREASE)
AS           

AMENDED
Taxes, (all sources) 20,060,196$  -$                   20,060,196$  
Charges for Services 4,372,020      -                     4,372,020      
Intergovernmental Revenues 4,541,084      -                     4,541,084      
Licenses & Permits 1,444,914      -                     1,444,914      
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 1,022,185      -                     1,022,185      
Interest & Penalties 130,500         -                     130,500         
Rental & Lease Income 158,744         -                     158,744         
Other Revenues 215,000         -                     215,000         
Other Financing Sources (700,543)        -                     (700,543)        

Total revenue appropriation    31,244,100$  -$                   31,244,100$  

EXPENDITURES
Mayor and Council 507,865$       -$                   507,865$       
Office of the City Attorney 178,104         -                     178,104         
Office of the City Clerk 348,914         -                     348,914         
Finance Department 923,640         -                     923,640         
Information Technology 1,420,382      -                     1,420,382      
General Account 5,725,431      -                     5,725,431      
Risk Management 1,040,819      -                     1,040,819      
Police Department 7,200,352      -                     7,200,352      
Dispatch Center 2,051,459      -                     2,051,459      
Fire Department 6,357,074      60,500           6,417,574      
Public Works Department 7,534,588      -                     7,534,588      
Engineering Department 518,231         -                     518,231         
Building Department 670,308         -                     670,308         

Total expenditure appropriation  34,477,167$  60,500$         34,537,667$  

12/31/13 general fund balance 13,270,040$  13,270,040$  
 Decrease to fund balance (3,233,067)     (60,500)          (3,293,567)     

Nonspendable (424,514)        -                     (424,514)        
Committed for snow removal (250,000)        -                     (250,000)        

Assigned self insurance (785,248)        -                     (785,248)        
12/31/14 Unassigned balance 8,577,211$    (60,500)$       8,516,711$    

6,907,533$    
Minimum unassigned fund balance requirement  is 20% of budgeted 
annual expenditures but not less then $4,000,000.   

 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 7 of 58



Ordinance No. 5952 
Page 3 

 
SECTION 2.  All appropriations made by this ordinance lapse at the end of the fiscal 
year to the extent they have not been expended or contractually committed to the 
departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of said departments of 
the City of Fairbanks, Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014 and 
ending December 31, 2014. 
 
 

SECTION 3.  The effective date of this ordinance shall be the _____ day of 
_____________ 2014. 
 
 

    _______________________________ 
       JOHN EBERHART, MAYOR 

 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, MMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 8 of 58



Ordinance No. 5952 
Page 4 

 
FISCAL NOTE 

 
ORDINANCE 5952, AMENDING THE 2014 OPERATING BUDGET 

TO FUND THE FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL NO. 1324 VS CITY 
HEALTHCARE ARBITRATION AWARD 

 
 

ESTIMATED REVENUES and OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
 

NO CHANGE 
 

1. Taxes – No Change 

2. Charges for Services – No Change 

3. Intergovernmental Revenues – No Change 

4. Licenses & Permits – No Change 

5. Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties – No Change 

6. Interest & Penalties – No Change 

7. Rental & Lease Income – No Change 

8. Other Revenues – No Change 

9. Other Financing Sources & (Uses) – No Change 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 9 of 58



Ordinance No. 5952 
Page 5 

 
 
 

FISCAL NOTE CONTINUED 
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES 

 
$60,500 INCREASE 

 
1. Mayor & Council – No Change 

2. City Attorney’s Office – No Change 

3. City Clerk’s Office – No Change 

4. Finance Department – No Change 

5. Information Technology – No Change 

6. General Account – No Change 

7. Risk Management – No Change 

8. Police Department – No Change 

9. Dispatch – No Change 

10. Fire Department – $60,500 Increase  

 $60,500  Increase to Benefits (FFA LOCAL 1324 Healthcare Arbitration 

Award) 

11. Public Works – No Change 

12. Engineering – No Change 

13. Building Department – No Change 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 10 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 11 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 12 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 13 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 14 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 15 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 16 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 17 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 18 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 19 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 20 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 21 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 22 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 23 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 24 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 25 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 26 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 27 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 28 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 29 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 30 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 31 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 32 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 33 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 34 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 35 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 36 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 37 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 38 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 39 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 40 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 41 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 42 of 58



 

Fairbanks North Star Borough / City of Fairbanks 
CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
June 11, 2014 

 

 
The Fairbanks North Star Borough/City of Fairbanks Chena Riverfront Commission (CRFC) met on 
Wednesday, June 11, 2014 with Co-Chair Plager presiding. The following Commission members 
were in attendance: Kelley Hegarty-Lammers, Co-Chair, Susan Rainey, Carrie McEnteer, Buki 
Wright, Lee Wood; John Jackovich and Bob Henszey. 
 
Also present were: Jackson Fox, City of Fairbanks; Jewelz Barker, TVWA; Barry Hooper, DOT; 
Nancy Durham, FNSB Community Planning; Donna Gardino, FMATS; Steve Taylor, FNSB Parks & 
Recreation; and Laura McLean, FNSB Recording Clerk. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Plager called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m.  
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

A motion was made by Rainey, seconded by Wood to approve the Agenda for June 11, 2014. 
There were no objections.  

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF May 14, 2014 
 

Hooper commented that a reference in last months’ meeting was made to a “CADX” study. It 
should be spelled “CATEX”. Also, on page 4, second line, the word “curved” should be “curb”. 

 
A motion was made by Wright, seconded by Henszey to approve the minutes for May 14, 2014 
with two minor corrections. There were no objections.  

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION  
 
 None 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Barbara Carlson Johnson addressed the Commission and stated that she would like to 
present to the Commission her ideas for a project that she has been working on.  
 
When DOT was presenting the new Wendell Street Bridge project, she attended several of 
their public meetings and thought what a great opportunity for a community project. She stated 
that when she was in art school in college, she worked on a project with an elementary school. 
There were 250 children studying marine animals and she worked with them by creating an 
outdoor project to be installed at the beach  Seattle. She feels that this would be a great 
opportunity to do something similar to this when the new Wendell Street Bridge is installed. 
She brought several samples of the work that was done in Seattle and feels that this would 
work well here also. Ms. Johnson offered examples of various mediums that can be used for a 
project such as this.  
 
 Plager asked where the artwork is suggested to be placed. Johnson responded that there is 
the riverwalk on the South portion of the bridge. Pedestrian areas are planned along the shore 
of the river on the North side and the walls creating these pedestrian areas are to be retaining 
walls. Johnson further commented that she envisions vertical displays along the retaining 
walls. She also commented that there is an opportunity to display artwork on the bridge itself AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 43 of 58



and on the support piers. She stated that at the moment she is exploring ideas for applications 
and partnering with various entities in the community. She added that they have about a two 
year timeline to get this project rolling.  
 
Rainey commented that many of the retaining walls experience graffiti vandalism and 
suggested that Johnson make contact with the Volunteers in Policing and get their feedback 
on how best to address this issue. Johnson agreed and added that studies have shown that 
vandalism is lessened when you have this kind of public art.  
 
Rainey asked if Johnson had a website that people could visit to get additional information 
regarding this project. Johnson commented that she would like to partner with another 
organization to achieve this. Barker added that the TVWA is prepared to carry it in terms of a 
reference to a community project on their website. She further commented that once the 
project materializes, they would like to list it under their Community Projects Tab on their 
website.  
 
Johnson also commented that she spoke with Cindy Shoemaker at the Morris Thompson 
Visitor Center about having a “Community Night” to inform people in the community about the 
project and Shoemaker offered to host the event.  
 
Wright asked what the timeframe was on the bridge. Hooper responded that the bridge 
construction should be started in 2016. Wright also suggested that Johnson speak to David 
vandenBerg at the Downtown Association. He stated that the Downtown Association has also 
supported the painting of the storm drains and the vent pipes throughout the downtown area.  
 
Hegarty-Lammers suggested that Johnson draft a resolution for the Commissions’ 
consideration and the Commission can look at it at the next meeting. Plager commented that 
Johnson will be placed on the agenda for the next meeting.  
 
Wright added that this Commission has no funding to provide for any projects. Plager 
commented that the Chena Riverfront Commission Plan is part of the Borough’s 
Comprehensive Plan that has gone through an extensive public review process and adoption 
by the Borough Assembly and the City Council.  
 
Johnson stated that she will provide Plager with her contact information. 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

None 
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Airport Way West Project 

Plager commented that the field trip went well and she thanked Hooper for his assistance in 
putting the field trip together. The field trip was really well attended.  
 
Plager stated that the first part of the field trip was on property that the Commission had 
permission to go onto. On this property was an abandoned trail along the river. She further 
stated that the property closer to the envisioned roundabout has a greenspace which allows 
one to visually see the river as they traverse the roundabout.  
 
Hegarty-Lammers commented that sometimes it feels like a mixed message when you hear 
that there is no funding for this project but you also hear the sooner we get your input the 
better. She feels that if the Commission has a specific input relative to a response to the letter 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 44 of 58



that the Commission received from the DOT project manager, the Commission should get it to 
DOT sooner rather than later. Hooper stated that that would be appreciated.  

 
Plager questioned if this is doable in this larger group setting or should there be a small group 
meeting about it. The Commission got the DOT letter at the end of the last meeting and have 
not had a chance to discuss DOT’s response to the Commission’s letter. Hegarty-Lammers 
suggested that the people who were involved in writing the original letter to DOT be involved 
in writing a response.  
 
Jackovich questioned how the Commission could make a good evaluation of what they think 
is proposed in relation to reality. Plager stated that she too questions what the changes will 
look like. She suggested a close-up aerial of the roundabout area of the project. Hooper 
stated that he can talk to the project manager and see if this is possible. Wood commented 
that this would be helpful. Henszey suggested taking the pdf file that was provided earlier and 
zoom in on it for this particular area. Plager asked for Hooper to send this to the recording 
clerk and she will forward it to the Commissioners and Liaisions.  
 
Hooper stated that DOT is in the process of developing right-of-way plans that involve right-
of-way research. After this process, they will be developing appraisals and negotiating with 
property owners. Once this occurs, DOT will be looking at a demolition plan to take down the 
buildings and other structures on the properties.  
 
Wright asked if, regarding the Barnette Street Bridge project and the triangle greenspace 
area, these projects were part of the scope of work for DOT in the beginning or if it was an 
add-on. The Barnette Street Bridge and greenspace area may serve as an example of how 
the Commission approaches DOT regarding the Airport Way West project.  

 
Hooper replied that funding is an issue. DOT received funding from several different sources. 
At the time that they were doing that, there was what was called “Transportation 
Enhancement Funds,” so there was money available. This funding is no longer available. It 
has been wrapped into a more general funding source and what that means is that that type of 
funding now competes with other types of improvements. The improvements for that project 
took on a life of its own as far as people having different ideas and visions for what should be 
in the triangle. As a result, FMATS took on the project to develop a committee to look at and 
make recommendations.  
 
Gardino added that through that process, and a selection process, FMATS selected a large 
art piece. They also wanted something more literal to depict the history so they received 
authorization from the FMATS Policy Committee to do the historical plaques. The funding 
came from the Transportation Enhancement program, but additional funds were secured from 
FMATS. 
 
Wright asked if FMATS had to go back to DOT to get their approval to do this even though 
they were receiving money elsewhere. Gardino replied that it is DOT right-of-way so whatever 
happens in that space requires permitting. DOT will have the final say in what is allowable in 
their right-of-way.  
 
Plager added that it is her impression that there was a certain amount of funding for the 
Transportation Enhancement Fund in the original Illinois Street Project that had been 
designed one way and then got redesigned, so that money was redirected to the current 
design. Gardino added that the FMATS Policy Committee actually provided more money than 
was requested. 
 
Plager reiterated that there is no Transportation Enhancement money specifically for the 
Airport Way West Project. Not that there couldn’t be, it is just a competitive process.  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 45 of 58



Hegarty-Lammers asked if FMATS, because of its umbrella authority, has eligibility for more 
funding than DOT in the new allocation of funds. Gardino replied that FMATS actually 
realized a 29% cut as a result of the new highway bill.  
 
Plager asked if FMATS would be more eligible or less eligible than DOT to apply as an entity 
for funding for a project like Ms. Johnson’s or the enhancement at the Airport Way West 
Project. Gardino responded that FMATS can write the grants. Hegarty-Lammers then 
inquired if it would be easier for DOT if FMATS did that rather than DOT. Hooper added that if 
money became available for a purpose of the Airport Way West Project, they would certainly 
look at it. Fundamentally, DOT would be looking at the question of would it be part of the 
project or would it be an activity that occurs simultaneously to the project or will it be 
something that occurs afterward. 
 
McEnteer asked if there is some guidance that Hooper and Gardino can give that can make 
this project more competitive than another. Hooper responded that these are surface 
transportation funds and that those compete with projects throughout the state. Priorities are 
based on need.  
 
Plager commented that it sounds as if this project is not a good candidate for these funds. 
Wright agreed.Hooper reiterated that this project has no funding allocation. Wright asked 
what the reason was for this project anyhow. Hooper responded that it is based on safety.  
 
Plager asked who would like to continue this discussion in a committee format. She further 
stated that the CRFC is going to write a letter to DOT stating where the CRFC would like to go 
next. 
Plager asked if there was anyone who would like to work with her to figure where the CRFC 
goes next regarding this project. Jackovich responded that he is already signed up. Wright 
volunteered to assist.  
 
Gardino added that one of the fundamental differences with this project is that it is not an 
FMATS funded project because it is on the National Highway System. FMATS does not have 
the same kind of buy-in. If DOT wanted FMATS to do something, they could ask but 
otherwise, FMATS doesn’t have any authority.  
 
Hooper added that DOT has a beautification permit process that private entities can apply for, 
for enhancements within DOT rights-of-way. Plager asked what the process is for 
enhancement funds. Hooper responded that he would have to get with the DOT Planning 
section to see what is available. Plager asked if he could do this and report back.  
 
Gardino added that at this point there really is not any particular criteria for applying for some 
of these various funding sources.  

 
B. Future process for future projects with DOT 

Hooper addressed the CRFC and handed out two different aerial maps and a handout of 
DOT General Project Activities. This list depicts different areas of involvement and he has 
placed an asterisk next to the areas that DOT would typically like to have public comment on. 
Also, at the bottom of this list is a listing of projects that he is aware of in the next three to four 
years which fall within the corridor of the river. Plager asked Hooper to come to the meeting 
next month with a list of projects and the timing that he envisions.  
 
C. Chena Summit debriefing 

Barker addressed the CRFC and enlightened them as to how the Chena River Summit was 
conceived. She commented that the Summit was well received again this year.  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 46 of 58



Plager asked about the “Education Fair” at the Summit.  Barker stated that it was also well 
received. Johnson added that she enjoyed the art display and the discussions by folks who 
have had events on the river. Barker continued by stating that everyone who attends the 
Summit thinks it is great. However, if it so great, why are more people not attending. Moving 
forward, there is not going to be a steering committee that meets once a month for four 
months. With the new funding source, they are going to have a number of community 
workshops throughout the year that are touching on all of the various topics that are presented 
at the Summit.  
 
Barker added that the presentations from this year’s Summit are available on the TVWA 
website. 

 
 Barker also stated that one outcome of the Summit is the recognition of the value of the 

Salcha River as a larger feeder of Chinook salmon in the Yukon run. She added that there is 
money out there that is seriously concerned about the Federal Disaster of the Yukon River 
runs. The Chena and the Salcha Rivers are the two largest feeders on the U.S. side into the 
Yukon run. There is international attention right now into these two rivers.  

 
 Barker added that McEnteer had taken the book that TVWA created back to the Base 

Garrision Commander and he is interested in taking on their own run of printing the book to 
share with all of the Ft. Wainwright residents. McEnteer added that the Chena River is in the 
backyard of most of the residents on post. The idea is to provide a copy of the book to each 
residence, particularly each new resident. They are still investigating the funding and will 
report back later.  

 
 Barker also commented that TVWA is sending out a letter to approximately 600 residents who 

reside along the Chena River. This letter will inform them of upcoming workshops and is also 
a tool to find out what topics these residents would like to have more information on. Barker 
stated that they would like to include the Chena Riverfront Plan with this “survey.” The catch is 
that it has to be postmarked by June 30th. Plager commented that the plan update will not be 
completed by June 30th , so the mailing will include the existing plan version. 

 
 Plager commented that if TVWA were going to mention the Chena Riverfront Plan in their 

letter perhaps a link to the Plan on TVWA’s website is appropriate.  Wood questioned if 
TVWA should mention in their letter that the plan is currently being updated. It was suggested 
that TVWA have a link to the plan on their website and also a disclaimer that the plan is 
currently being updated.  

 
 Plager announced that the next public meeting for the CRFC Plan Update is scheduled for 

June 18th at the library. McLean commented that having just received the date of the meeting 
that is planned for the Noel Wein Library this afternoon, it will not meet the Borough’s 
requirement for public notification and will have to be rescheduled.  Plager stated that she will 
contact the library and see what later dates are available and then will notify McLean so that 
the meeting can be noticed properly. Henszey asked what is the latest date that the CRFC 
can meet for public input. Hegarty-Lammers stated that July 30th is the latest to meet in order 
to make the August Assembly and City Council calendars. 

 
Plager announced the upcoming sessions that the plan update will be presented to various 
rotary organizations and other groups within the community in the next month. Durham 
reminded the CRFC that if the CRFC goes and speaks to another agency and do a 
presentation, no notice is required. If the CRFC goes to another agency to get input and 
feedback, this meeting will need to publicly noticed.  
 
D. Ft. Wainwright Presentation by McEnteer 

McEnteer requested that her presentation be postponed until the July 9th meeting.  
AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 47 of 58



 
8. STAFF AND LIASION COMMENTS 
 
 Taylor announced that Tanana Lakes will open on Friday, June 13th. They will be holding an 

Open House from 5 pm – 8 pm that evening.  
 
 Barker presented a version of the “Fairbanks Yellow Map, Green Edition”. It will be printed on 

green paper and it has all of the green infrastructure projects within the boundary. It is being 
produced in addition to the “Yellow Map”. It will be available at the TVWA Solstice Booth. 

 
 Barker also announced that their Riverwalk is to be held on the 14th of June from Noon to 

4:00 pm at the Carlson Center. 
 
 Fox announced that over the weekend they had a very successful storm drain art project. 

Pictures’ of each storm drain that was painted was displayed. He stated that in total there 
were eleven artists and they painted fifteen storm drains. This event was sponsored in 
partnership with the Downtown Association and TVWA.  

 
 Fox also noted that the Stream Clean-up-Day will be held this Saturday, June 14th on Noyes 

Slough from 9:00 am - Noon. They are always looking for more volunteers.  
 
 Jackovich commented that the farewell celebration for Hernandez was very nice and very 

well attended. He also commented that the historic plaques have been placed on the 
pedestals adjacent to where the “Polaris” sculpture will go in the greenspace between the 
Cushman and Barnette Bridges. These are great pictures with lots of history.  

 
 McEnteer stated that she too is excited about the official opening of the Tanana Lakes 

Recreation Area. She has visited the area several times and finds it to be a comfortable and 
safe area. She feels that it is a great asset to our community.  Barbara Johnson added that 
this recreational area will make the Tanana River accessible where it was not before.  

 
 Rainey agreed and stated that it is a huge asset to the community. She also apprised that 

Commission and its Liaisons that on Sunday, June 15th, there will be a fundraiser at 6:30 pm 
on the Riverboat Discovery for Stone Soup.  

 
 Wright stated that lots of good work is being done by a great group on this Commission.  
 
9. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 
 
 Plager thanked Hegarty-Lammers for all her hard work on the Plan Update presentations.  
 
10. AGENDA SETTING FOR July 9th, 2014 COMMISSION MEETING 
 

A. Future process for future projects with DOT 
B. Ft. Wainwright presentation 
C. Chena Riverfront Plan update 
D. Airport Way West project 
E. Wendell Street Bridge art 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 A motion was made by Hegarty-Lammers, seconded by Wood, to adjourn. All were in 

agreement. There were none opposed. 
 
/l 
 
AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 48 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 49 of 58



ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC 2-485 through 2-488

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

claystreetcemeterycommission@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Clay Street Cemetery Commission shall consist of seven members, three of
w hom must be residents of the City, appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the
City Council. One member shall be active in the study of Fairbanks history, one
member shall have experience or interest in maintaining the cemetery and f ive
members shall represent the community at large (or four members shall be at-large
representatives if  a Council Member is appointed to the Commission). The City
Public Works Director shall be an ex-off icio member of the Commission. Appointed
members shall serve a three-year term. A chairperson shall be selected from
among the Commission’s members.

MEETINGS The Commission shall conduct regular public meetings, including public hearings
required as a condition of receipt of grants. If  authorized by the City Council, the
Commission may convene into executive session in accordance w ith state law.

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

CLAY STREET CEMETERY COMMISSION

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  8 Seats

TERM LENGTH  3 Years

TERM LIMIT  N/A

CONTACT

Office of the City Clerk

(907) 459-6771

cityclerk@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

The Clay Street Cemetery Commission
shall advise the City Council and Mayor
regarding the restoration, improvement,
and maintenance of the Clay Street
Cemetery. It shall provide and update a
long-term plan for the cemetery.

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 50 of 58



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Jul 10, 2014
Status: For Review

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

Same as above

What distric t do you l ive in?

Which Boards would you l ike to apply for?

Clay Street Cemetery Commission

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What l i fe experience can you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Currently on commission. I have 23 years experience in Fairbanks as a mortician and cemetery operations,
including marker sales of all types from small to large & installation of those; interments, disinterments,
cremations & niche installations; experience with many vendors of cemetery merchandise & equipment.
Experience at Northern Lights Memorial Park, where I was manager, as well as marker installations &

David Erickson

Fairbanks AK 99701

City Resident

Fairbanks North Star Borough Parks Caretaker / Mechanic

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 51 of 58



Upload a Resume

disinterments at Birch Hill and Clay Street Cemetery. Additional experience in cemetery equipment &
purchase of everything from hand tools to backhoe, front deck mowers and dump trrucks. Employment as a
location manager in both a small family owned business as well as a large cemetery & funeral service
corporation (NYSE: SRV). Corporate experience allowed training at corporate schools and national
conventions.

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

US Army Vietnam service 1968-1970 B.S. University of Minnesota Mortuary Science, Mpls, MN 2 Years Law
School William Mitchel College of Law, St. Paul, MN National Board Certificatiopn in Funeral Service
Employed by Alaskan Memorial Parks, Inc from 1983 - 1996 General manager Northern Lights Mortuary &
Memorial Park Location manager Chapel of Chimes General manager of Fairbanks operations for Service
Corporation International (NYSE: SRV) 1996 - 2006.

Professional Licenses/Training:

Funeral Service University of Minnesota, College of Health Sciences Mortician license, M136 Alaska Funeral
Director license M137 Alaska Formerly licensed in Minnesota prior to first Alaska licensure in 1983

Demographics

Some boards and commissions require the demographics of membership to be proportionate to the general
public. The following information helps track our recruitment and diversity efforts.  NOTE: You must complete
each field but you may select "Prefer not to answer" if you do not wish to share your demographics. 

Ethnic ity

Political Party

Gender

Date of Birth

Sexual Orientation

Male

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 52 of 58



AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 53 of 58



ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC 2-306 through 2-309

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

boardofplumberexaminers@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Board of Plumber Examiners shall consist of f ive members, at least three
members of the board shall be residents of the City, each member shall serve for
three-year terms. The members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to
confirmation by the City Council. The chairman shall be elected by the Board of
Examiners subject to approval by the City Council, and shall serve in this capacity
for one year. The City Building Off icial shall be a non-voting, ex off icio member of
the board and shall act as secretary.

MEETINGS The Board of Plumber Examiners shall meet at least once each quarter and all
meetings shall be open to the public. The chairman in his discretion is authorized to
call special meetings, or a majority of the members may require a special meeting
to be called. A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, and three aff irmative votes shall be necessary to carry any question.
Permanent records, or minutes, shall be kept. The minutes shall promptly be f iled in
the Off ice of the City Clerk and shall be open to inspection by any person.

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

BOARD OF PLUMBER EXAMINERS

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  6 Seats

TERM LENGTH  3 Years

TERM LIMIT  N/A

CONTACT

Office of the City Clerk

(907) 459-6771

cityclerk@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

The Board of Plumber Examiners is
empowered to perform the duties as
prescribed in Sections 2-306 through 2-
309, as well as Sections 14-291 through
14-301 of the Fairbanks General Code
(FGC).

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 54 of 58



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Mar 26, 2014
Status: For Review

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

What distric t do you l ive in?

Which Boards would you l ike to apply for?

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What l i fe experience can you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Chairman, Board of Plumber Examiners, 1999-present. I also help the Building Department review Plumbing
and Mechanical Codes when new codes are issued.

Mike Desmond

Fairbanks AK 99701

Non-Resident

Western Mechanical, Inc. President

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 55 of 58



Upload a Resume

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

President - Western Mechanical, Inc. 1992-present.

Professional Licenses/Training:

B.S. Engineering Technology, Cal Poly SLO (1979); Journeyman Plumber; Mechanical Administrator #77.

Demographics

Some boards and commissions require the demographics of membership to be proportionate to the general
public. The following information helps track our recruitment and diversity efforts.  NOTE: You must complete
each field but you may select "Prefer not to answer" if you do not wish to share your demographics. 

Ethnic ity

Political Party

Gender

Date of Birth

Sexual Orientation

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 56 of 58



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Jul 7, 2014
Status: Eligible

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

What distric t do you l ive in?

Which Boards would you l ike to apply for?

Board of Plumber Examiners

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What l i fe experience can you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Over 40 years in the Fairbanks trade. Would like to see some code changes.

Dan Portwine

Fairbanks AK 99709

Non-Resident

Portwine Plumbing & Heating President

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 57 of 58



Upload a Resume

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

Alaska resident for 42 years. In business 40 years. City Masters license since 1975.

Professional Licenses/Training:

City of Fairbanks Masters License State of Alaska Mechanical Administrators License NITC Medical Gas
License

Demographics

Some boards and commissions require the demographics of membership to be proportionate to the general
public. The following information helps track our recruitment and diversity efforts.  NOTE: You must complete
each field but you may select "Prefer not to answer" if you do not wish to share your demographics. 

Ethnic ity

Political Party

Gender

Date of Birth

Sexual Orientation

Male

AGENDA PACKET - July 21, 2014 Page 58 of 58


	 AGENDA - July 21, 2014
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Transfer - Lavelle's Bistro
	Transfer - Bojangles

	NEW BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5952

	COMMUNICATIONS
	CA-Reappoint to AML/JIA
	Clay St Cemetery 06/04/14
	Public Safety Comm 02/11/14
	Public Safety Comm 03/11/14
	Public Safety Comm 04/08/14
	Public Safety Comm 06/10/14
	Chena Riverfront Comm 06/11/14
	Clay St Cemetery Appointment
	Appointments to Board of Plumber Examiners




